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Outline of Buyer-Seller Rights and
Remedies in Default and Breach
Situations Under the UCC

Stanley V. Kinyon*

The following was prepared by Professor Kinyon for use
by his students in the Commercial Law series at the Uni-
versity of Minnesota Law School. Because it proved so
successful, the Review sought and received permission to
print it herein. It is believed that this summary and out-
line will also provide an extremely useful device for the
practicing lawyer faced with such remedy problems under
the Code.

I INTRODUCTION

In any alleged breach situation in contracts for the sale of
goods—where one party claims breach by the other and seeks a
remedy as a result—there are three distinet basic issues:

1) Has there been non-performance or default in fact? This
involves interpretation of the contract and answering such ques-
tions as, what was required? Has the requirement been fulfilled
or tendered?

2) If there has been non-performance or default in fact, does it
constitute a breach? That is, was there any excuse or justi-
fication for non-performance?

3) If there is a breach, what remedy or remedies are available
to the aggrieved party?

Contracts for sale involve both goods-performance and pay-
ment-performance. While goods-performance is primarily Sell-
er’s responsibility and payment-performance primarily that of
the Buyer, each involves some obligation on both parties. For
example, there is the obligation of cooperation,® the obligation
to accept goods or payment upon proper tender? and to present
and attempt to collect checks received,® the obligation of good

* Professor of Law, University of Minnesota.

1. UnrrorMm ComMmMEeRCIAL Cope § 2-311. All references are to the
1962 Text and Comments Edition of the Uniform Commercial Code. In
Minnesota the Code is in Chapter 336 of the 1967 Minnesota Statutes
(8§88 336.1-101 thru 336.10-105).

2. §§ 2-301, 2-507(1), 2-511(1).

3. § 3-501(1)(b) & (c).
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faith? and the general contractual duty not to interfere with or
prevent performance by the other party.® Yet, in considering the
numerous problems of non-performance, excuse, breach and rem-
edy, it is very helpful to divide them into these two categories.
Thus, the question of whether there has been default in fact is
one that can be discussed only in terms of specific coniractual
arrangements, and is therefore beyond the scope of this sum-
mary. The various issues involving breach and remedy will be
considered in the framework of paymeni-performance, primarily
defaults by Buyer, and goods-performance, primarily defaults by
Seller.

II. PAYMENT-PERFORMANCE

A. ExcUusaBLE NON-PAYMENT OR DErAY

Just as tender of payment by Buyer is a condition to Seller’s
duty to tender and complete delivery of the goods or documents
unless the contract provides for pre-payment or deferred-pay-
ment,® so proper tender of conforming goods or documents is a
condition to Buyer’s duty to tender and complete payment un-
less otherwise agreed.” Thus, Buyer’s failure or refusal to pay
where justified—by Seller’s failure to tender the goods or docu-
ments as contracted or by Seller’s rejectable tender®—is not a
breach by Buyer, does not subject Buyer to liability and does not
entitle Seller to any remedies. Also, delay in payment may be
excused where Seller unexpectedly demands legal tender? or,
presumably, where the delay is caused by factors beyond Buy-
er’s control such as tornado, flood, or hurricane.?

B. WgroNGFUL FAILURE OR REFUSAL T0 PAY BEFORE ACCEPTANCE
oF Goobs

Where Buyer wrongfully fails to make an advance payment,
repudiates the contract before tender of goods, or fails or refuses
without excuse to accept™ and pay for conforming goods prop-
erly tendered or delivered, Buyer is in breach of both his pay

1-203.
A. Corein, ConNTRACTS § 1264 (1962); 5 S. WmnisToN, CoN-
77 (3d ed. 1961).

511(1).

4.
5.
TRACTS §

§
6
6
8
§
§
8

2-511(2).
Compare § 2-615.

6.
7.
8.
9.
0.
1. § 2-606.

1
1
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ment and goods ogligations. However, except in limited situ-
ations,'? such breach does not entitle Seller to force the goods on
Buyer and recover the price. In other words, Seller cannot
ordinarily get specific performance, but must settle for damages
for breach.®

C. DisHONOR OF CHECK GIVEN Iy PAYMENT

Payment-by-check—whether in advance or upon receipt of
goods or documents, or after receipt and acceptance in the credit
sale—is conditional payment.!* Thus, if the check is dishon-
ored®® there is a breach of Buyer’s payment obligation and he is
liable to its holder under negotiable instruments law for the
amount of the check;'¢ alternatively he is liable for breach of the
contract of sale,’” if Seller holds or takes up the dishonored
check® Also, if this was a cash sale with Buyer obtaining
delivery of the goods or documents by giving the check, Seller
can elect to rescind the fransaction and recover the goods from
Buyer.!® However, if Buyer received the goods on credit, failure
of his subsequent payment through dishonor of his check merely
subjects him to liability on the check or, if Seller elects, for the
price.20

D. WronNGFUL FATLURE OR REFUSAL TO PAY AFTER ACCEPTANCE OF
Goops v SALE-ON-CREDIT

After receipt and acceptance of goods in a sale-on-credit,
Buyer becomes the owner of the goods and is obligated to pay
Seller the price in accordance with the credit terms.2! If, be-
cause of defective goods, Buyer is entitled to revoke his accept-
ance?? or keep the goods and give Seller notice of defects which
amount to breach of warranty or contract,> he may deduct the

12. § 2-709.

13. These remedies are outlined in § 2-703 and elaborated upon in
§§ 2-704 to 2-708 and 2-710. Damages in this case would basically come
under §§ 2-706 or 2-708 plus 2-710.

14, § 2-511(3). Exceptions are to be found in § 3-802(1) (a).

15. § 3-507(1).

16. §§ 3-413(2), 3-414.

17. §§ 2-703 through 2-710.

18, § 3-802(1) (b).

19. See, e.g., J.I, Case Threshing Mach. Co. v. Bargabos, 143 Minn.
8, 172 N.W. 882 (1919). See also § 2-511(3).

20. § 2-709(1) (a).

21. §§ 2-607(1), (2), 2-709(1) (a).

22, § 2-608.

23. § 2-307(3).
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damages from the price.?* Absent such excuses, however, Buy-
er’s failure {o pay is a breach and Seller is entitled to recover the
price.?s If the transaction was a straight sale on open-account or
other unsecured credit, Seller has no rights with respect to the
goods except in the case where Buyer misrepresented his sol-
vency.28 Absent such misrepresentation, Buyer has become full
owner of the goods and Seller is merely a general creditor for the
price without goods-rights, except as he may be able to acquire
them by suing for the price and then attaching or levying on the
goods. This, of course, will not help Seller if in the meantime
the goods have been sold, mortgaged or pledged by Buyer or if
Buyer goes bankrupt within four months of such attachment or
levy.

It is because of Seller’s limited rights as general creditor in
the simple sale-on-credit that he often insists on a security agree-
ment2? by which he retains a security interest®® and goods-rights
for his protection in the event of Buyer’s default in payment of
the price. The various aspects of such security are dealt with in
Article Nine of the Code.

III. GOODS-PERFORMANCE
A. TypEs oF NON-PERFORMANCE AND .BREACH

(1) Either party; after the contract is made but before per-
formance is due, may repudiate by indicating to the other an
intention not to perform. Such “anticipatory repudiation”2?
may give the other party the option to proceed as if there were a
present breach.

(2) Seller may be guilty of . present breach by wholly
failing to tender the goods or documents; by failing to tender or
ship at the time or place or in the rnanner specified in the con-
tract; by tendering or delivering non-conforming goods or docu-
ments in breach of description or warranty;-or by failing to per-
form a subsequent obligation to repair, replace, or take back.

(3) Buyer may be guilty of a present breach by preventing
proper tender by Seller,®® by rejecting properly tendered and

24, § 2-T17.

25. § 2-709(1) (a).
26. § 2-702(2).
27. § 9-105(1) (h).

28. § 1-201(37).

29. §§ 2-610, 2-611.

30. Examples of such inferference with proper tender might be
fajlure to g1ve sh1pp1ng instructions or furnish transportation or other
means of receiving the goods. See §§ 2-819(3), 2-503(1) (b).
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conforming goods, or by wrongfully revoking his acceptance.
Also, Buyer may fail to fulfill a condition of his goods-rights by
failing to give proper notice of defects in tender or goods.3* It
should be noted that a breach by Buyer of his goods-obligations is
often accompanied by a breach in his payment obligations, since
he fails “to accept and pay in accordance with the contract.”®?

(4) Seller’s insolvency may result in business failure, receiv-
ership, or bankruptcy before he has completed his goods-obli-
gations, thus causing a breach. Buyer’s cause of action for dam-
ages® in such case is merely a general-creditor claim, but if
Buyer has already paid part or all of the price, he may have
goods-rights?* superior to the rights of other creditors. And, if
title has already passed to him,’® Buyer can keep the goods and
merely pay any balance due on the price, since the goods are no
longer assets of the Seller.

B. Excusk ror Non-PERFORMANCE OR DELAY v GOODS- |
PERFORMANCE CAUSED BY EXTRINSIC EVENTS :

(1) In contracts for specific goods and before risk of loss has
passed to Buyer, accidental destruction or damage mthouttfault
will wholly or partly excuse Seller’s failure to perform.3

(2) Extrinsic interferences with manner or method of per-
formance will justify alternative performance or delay.® -

(8) Failure of pre-supposed conditions—“frustration”’—may
excuse delay in performance or nonperformance under certain
conditions,38

C. REMEDIES FOR BREACH BY SELLER OR BUYER IN THEIR Goobps-
PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS

Assuming that there is proof of breach by Seller or Buyer,
the options and remedies available to the aggrieved party de-
pend to a considerable extent upon the stage of performances at
which the breach occurs. The following chart covers various
types of Buyer and Seller breach at successive stages in perform-
ance, and the remedles avallable under apphcable UCC pro-
visions. .

31. § 2-607(3) (a).

32. § 2-301.
33. §§ 2-T11, 2-712, 2-713.
34, § 2-502,
35. § 2-401.
36. § 2-613.
37. § 2-614.

38. §§ 2-615, 2-616.
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